АНГЛИЙСКИЙ ВАРИАНТ
There are quite a few countries in the history of civilization whose destiny has been so unusual and highly dramatic as that of North-Eastern Prussia.
The Castle
Kenigsberg was founded outside the German territory during the German knights Order intrusion into the land of Prussians. Since 1230-1231 German knights undertook a few military & political operations to conquer freedom-loving and brave Prussians. Moving further on from the rivers of Vizsla and Nogat they erected a number of fortresses such as Elbing, Balga, Brandenburg and finally reached Zemland.
In January 1255 a powerful invading army of crusaders under the command of King Ottokar II from Bohemia crossed the icebound gulf Frishes Huff and pillaged the settlements of Zemland. On their way back the knights captured and destroyed a free settlement of Prussians called Twangste ('wangus1 is a Prussian word meaning 'oak-wood') located not far from the river Pregel's mouth. On its site the crusaders founded their fortress which was named Kenigsberg, Most probably after King Ottokar.
In September 1255 a wooden fortification was already built, but the rebellious Prussians burnt it down. By 1257 the first stone building was erected inside the. fortress and the construction of other brick buildings began. They divided Lobe-Beich brook with the dam making two ponds — Schloss-Teich (Castle Pond) and Ober-Teich (Upper Pond), and filled the moats with water. Later the fortress and the Castle itself were often renovated and expanded.
It was the main fortress of the Order in the East. Originally the Castle was a residence of the Marshal of Teutonic knights. After the surrender of Marienburg (1457) the residence of the Great Magistrate was transferred to the Castle. In 1525 by the order of Duke Albrecht the eastern part of the Castle was reconstructed under the direction of the architect Friedrich Nusderfer to satisfy the needs of the court. On January 18, 1701 in its spacious Audience Chamber the first Prussian King, Kurfurst Friedrich III crowned himself with his own hand.
However, a few years earlier a very important event took place in Kenigsberg: on October 18, 1663 in the courtyard of the Castle the Prussian nobility made a feast in honour of Kurfurst Friedrich Wilhelm who had secured sovereignty of the Eastern Prussia by the Welau Treaty. Prussia was dependent on the Polish Kingdom for two centuries according to the Second Torn Peace Treaty following its defeat at Grunwald Battle and the Thirteen-Year War (1466).
198 years later, on October 18, 1861 on the eastern side of the Castle courtyard there was a celebration in honour of King Wilhelm I and Queen Augusta. After the ceremony the king crowned himself and the queen in the Castle Church.
The Castle and the entire historic center were burnt down during British bombardments in August 1944. In the late 60-ies the party leadership made a decision to blow up the Castle's ruins. A small group of local intelligentsia made a desperate attempt to prevent the destruction of the Castle. However, L. I. Brezhnev personally interfered in the matter and the Kenigsberg Castle came to its last hour. The 96-metre Castle Tower, which was built in 1864 and dominated the city, was blown up earlier.
Nowadays only old photos can tell us about the Castle Church's splendid interior with fragments of the Order of Black Eagle, the Throne Room and the biggest in Germany Chamber of Muscovites (83 m x 18 m) named after the Great Moscow Embassy in the XVI century. One can only remember the collections of 38 museum halls, the unique 'Silver Library', the exotic underground restaurant 'Blutgerichf.
It was in 1256 that the first settlement of migrants from the West grew up in the shelter of the Castle. In 1263 already at the dawn of its history the settlement was burned down by the unsubdued Prussians. Its inhabitants restored it to life on a better protected site between the Castle and the Pregel river. The town privilege was granted to it by the German Order in 1286. That was the date of birth of the town of Altstadt. However, the number of migrants increased greatly and soon it was impossible to settle all of them in Altstadt. That is why in 1300 Kenigsberg Ruler Bertold Bruhafen granted the town privilege to a new settlement at the foot of the hill Milenberg. That was the date of birth of the town of Lebenicht.
The third settlement— Kneiphoff was founded on the island formed by two branches of the Pregel river. The town privilege was granted to it in 1327.
Only in 1724, during the reign of King Friedrich Wilhelm I, the three small towns merged into one." Zaharius Hesse, Doctor of Law and Burgomaster of Kneiphoff, became the first burgomaster of Kenigsberg. During 200 years the Town Hall of Kneiphoff served as a municipal building of Kenigsberg. In 1927 it was converted for use as the Kenigsberg Museum. The Burgomaster's residence was moved into the Town Hall in Hansa-platz. The emblems of three old towns were depicted on the emblem of Kenigsberg.
Kneiphoff
April 6, 1327 is regarded as the date of birth of Kneiphoff. Gradually it became the splendid gem of Kenigsberg. There was an old saving: 'There is power in Altstadt, luxury in Kneiphoff, mud (arable land) in Lebenicht1. No buildings remained on the island nowadays. After two dreadful nights at the end of August 1944 this majestic densely populated town was reduced to ashes. Everything perished apart except the ancient walls of the Cathedral and the memorial portico on the grave of Immanuel •Kant, 'The Great Son of the city'.
The Cathedral
The Cathedral became a peculiar symbol of today's city. It was laid in 1333 and had been erected for about 50 years. The Great Magistrate Luter fon Braunschweig is reputed to be its founder, inside the Cathedral is his burial vault.
Near to 1380 its construction was on the whole completed. This masterpiece of Gothic architecture rests on numerous oak supports that pass through a huge layer of swamp soil to firm soil below. The Cathedral was 88 m in length, 30 m in height. The soaring 57-metre spire of southern tower overlooked the panorama of Kneiphoff. Its inner construction consisted of three-naves basilica with a high chorus. After the Reformation the Cathedral was used as the University Church where many unique pieces of art were kept
Its grounds contain the tombstones of Bishops, Great Magistrates of German Order and Prussian Dukes. The last Magistrate of the Order and the first Temporal Ruler of North-Eastern Prussia, the founder of Kenigsberg University, Markgrave fon Brandenburg-Ansbah, Duke Albrecht, was buried in the Duke burial place, the fragments of which have remained oh the eastern wall of the Cathedral. Adjacent to his tomb made of dark marble both of his wives — Duchess Dorothea and Anna Maria fon Braunschweig who passed away 16 hours after her husband — were buried alongside six of their children who died in early childhood.
There was a tomb of Count Wallenrodt who is reputed to be the founder of the famous library bearing his name. It occupied two western facades of the Cathedral and contained over 10,000 unique books.
During the World War II the Cathedral was badly damaged and after the fall of Kenigsberg it was left in ruins. There was an intention to pull it down, but the presence of Kant's tomb saved the monument for future-generations. The last shelter of the great philosopher — an austere memorial portico — was built by Friedrich Lars in 1924. Kant became the most famous thinker in Europe in his own lifetime. He was an extraordinary peculiar man. His working day lasted up to 15 hours (from 5 in the morning till 10 in the evening). He was very punctual. When Kenigsberg residents saw him walking they involuntarily checked their time. He lived to the age of 80 and died on February 12, 1804.
There is a monument to Julius Rupp, a rebellious Kenigsberg preacher, nearby. In 1844 he declared his renunciation of the church and shortly after he founded the first free evangelical community called 'The Friends of Light1. That was his grand daughter, the famous artist Kate Kolvitz, who made a bronze relief of him. She lived not far from the Cathedral in Linden-strasse. The present relief is not the original, its excellent copy was brought by her grand daughter Utah Bonke-Kolvitz and installed on June 22, 1991.
There were 7 bridges over the river Pregel in Kenigsberg. They are known as the classical seven. In 1736 the Kenigsberg University set the following task: is it possible to cross all the seven bridges without crossing one of them twice? The famous Swiss mathematician Leonhard Ailer proved that it could not be done.
Grune-brucke (or Green Bridge) was built over the Old Pregel near Hundegatt in 1322.
Kremer-brucke (or Shop Bridge) was built over the new Pregel in 1286, rebuilt in 1900. It was in its way a pair to Grune-brucke. Both bridges were demolished while erecting a new trestle bridge.
Kettel-brucke (or Entrails Bridge) was built up the stream just before Grune-brucke in 1377, rebuilt in 1886, destroyed in 1945. Shmiede-brucke (or Blacksmith's Bridge) was built over the New Pregel between Altstadt and Kneiphoff up the stream from Kremer-brucke in 1397, rebuilt in 1896, destroyed in 1945.
Holz-brucke (or Wooden Bridge) was built between Lebenicht and Lorase island in 1404, rebuilt in 1804, repaired in 1980-ies (the route of tram № 5).
Hoch-brucke (or Tall Bridge) was built in 1520, rebuilt a little upstream from its original position in 1882, restored after 1945 (the route of tram № 5 near the well-preserved Guard Tower).
Honig-brucke (or Honey Bridge) was built between Kneiphoff and Lomse island, rebuilt in 1882, restored after 1945.
Kaiser-brucke (or Imperial Bridge) was built in 1905, destroyed in 1945.
To the west of the trestle bridge on the site of the present sport complex 'Yunost' there was Lastadi am Hundegatt, a famous area of warehouses with high frontons. Most of them were constructed in the XVIII century and had their own names — 'Bear', 'Palm Tree1; 'Crazy'.
Stock Exchange
There were never Stock Exchanges in Lebenicht and the last Exchange of Altstadt was destroyed in 1870. There were 4 Stock Exchanges in Kneiphoff. Since 1728 all trade operations of Kenigsberg had been held hier. The last, the 4th Stock Exchange of Kneiphoff was erected to a design by the Bremen architect Henrich Muller in 1875. Like the Cathedral it rests on piles which are of 12-18 metres in length (2202 in all).
It was built in Renaissance style. There were four groups of statues in each corner of its roof symbolizing the trade relations of Kenigsberg with four continents: Europe, Asia, Africa and America. The impressive staircase is adorned by the figures of two lions holding the shields with emblems of the city and its merchant community on them.
The Large Hall of the Stock Exchange is 35 meters long, 23 meters wide and 18 meters height. Apart from exchange operations it was used for balls and concerts. The Hall of Summer Stock Exchange facing the river once had a glass cover. Exhibitions and other public events were held there. On the eastern side there was an entrance to the gallery, offices and telegraph. In the basement there was a restaurant and a post-office. The building of Stock Exchange was restored in the middle of 70-ies.
Concert Hall
Before the World War II there were 26 Evangelical, 4 Catholic churches and a few chapels in Kenigsberg. Most of them were destroyed.
Near the Haberberg Church which was on the site of the present cinema 'Oktyabr' in the area of present-day Bagration and B. Khmelnitsky streets there were at least 4 churches. Only one of them has survived to date. This is the Catholic church of St Family built by Fritz Haitman in 1903. Nearby stands the former Hospital of St Katherine. Due to this neighborhood the Church was called Katherine-Kirche as well. During the war the church was damaged. In 1980 it was restored and now houses the Concert Hall of Kaliningrad Philharmonic Society. In 1982 a "Rigger-Kloss" organ was installed in the Concert Hall.
At the end of B. Khmelnitsky Street (former Oberhaberberg) there was a live stock market with the Lutheran Evangelic Church nearby. The church, damaged a little, stood there up to 1970-ies. Unfortunately no remnants of it have survived to date: it was blown up.
Friedland Gate
At the junction of former Austrian Street (Kalinin Avenue now) with Schonflisser-allee (Dzerzinsky Street now) magnificent Friedland Gate can be seen. The Gate was once adorned by two sculptures carved by Wilhelm Sturmer. On its inner side there was a figure of Great Komtur of the German Order Friedrich fon Zollern who was killed in the Grunwald Battle in 1410. Unfortunately it was lost. But another one still remains on the outer side of the Gate — a figure of Great Magistrate Zigfrid fon Foihtvangen who went down in history of the German Order mainly due to the fact that his residence was transferred from Venice to Marienburg in 1309. The figure was damaged — now it stands beheaded.
Southern Railway Terminal
Not far from Brandenburg Gate there was the Main Railway Terminal of Kenigsberg (Southern Railway Terminal now). In front of the Terminal there is a Statue of M. I. Kalinin after whom Kenigsberg was renamed on July, 4, 1946.
The Terminal was erected to a design by the architect Earnest Riechter and solemnly opened on September, 19, 1929. On the night of January, 21, 1945 the last train for Berlin overcrowded by refugees left the station.
The Terminal building itself has not changed greatly apart from the roof which was made of reinforced glass and its facade which was adorned by the sculptural picture depicting Chronos, the God
of Time, who was trying hard to hold two hot horses (design by Herman Brahert). Attached to the Terminal there was a Kenigsberg post-office № 5, which is a post-office now as well. Across the street you can see the remnants of old Town Wall. There were two cemeteries behind it before the war.
Opposite the Terminal lies a new residential area behind which the 'Oktyabr' cinema dominates its surroundings from its elevated site. Formerly the Haberberg Church, opened in 1753, was located there.
The adjacent area was called Haberberg; between Brandenburg and Friedland gates there was Haberberg fortification part of which still remains along the former Austrian Street (since 1938 — Horst Wessel-strasse) and on the site of the present park (the former Zuid-park — since 1938 Horst Wessel-park). On the eve of the war a statue of Wessel was unveiled in the park. Nowadays on this site the Memorable Symbol to Heroes-Komsomol-Members designed by the Кaliningrad sculptor L. Ponomareva stands. Located on one line with the Memorable Symbol of Polish Friendship and the building of Concert Hall, it makes a part of an expressive architectural ensemble which are quite a few in the city.
In the mid-thirties a sport complex 'Eastern Prussia' for 6,000 people was built there. It survived the war, but was dismantled later and freezing installations for an artificial skating-rink were delivered to Moscow.
Castle Pond ('Parkotel', Stadthalle)
Not far from the 'Kaliningrad' hotel the famous Castle Pond can be seen. It has changed greatly: nearly all the buildings were destroyed during British bombardments in August, 1944. On the night of August, 30 the bridge over the Pond was burnt down. Nowadays it is stanned at intervals by three concrete bridges.
On the western side of Castle Pond at the junction of Mitteltragheim (Proletarskaya Street now) with Hintertragheim (Sergeeva Street now) stands a concrete 5-storey building which was once the most fashionable hotel in Kenigsberg called 'Parkhotel' built by the architect Hans Hopp in 1929. Many well-known people stayed there, among them A. Hitler in 1938 and a little later Soviet Foreign Minister V. Molotov.
On the eastern side of the Pond there is a building of the former City Concert Hall (Stadthalle) which was badly damaged by bombardments. The building was restored and assumed a majestic appearance; it houses the Local Museum now.
Stadthalle was built in Modern style by the Berlin architect Richard Zeel and since its opening in 1912 was a milestone event in musical life of the city. Besides the Big Hall there were two other halls named after Burgomeister Kerte and Gebauer, a founder of Conservatoire, who sponsored the construction of Stadthalle.
On the far end of the Castle Pond there are famous cascades connecting it with the Upper Pond. Close to it walls of the former distillery 'Mental' can be seen — now it is Kaliningrad Liqueur and Vodka Distillery.
Nearby the Charity and City hospitals were located. They house the Regional Maternity Home and the Regional Hospital nowadays.
In 1992 in the courtyard of the Regional Hospital a memorial to sisters-nuns of the Deconis Order was unveiled. More than 130 years ago the Charity Hospital was founded by the sisters-nuns of the Deconis Order supported by Duke Don's two daughters. Dozens of nuns from ducal families (only they were accepted to Order) worked there up to 1948.
Forstadt District (Marine College, house № 111-117 on Leninsky Avenue)
Forstadt has changed greatly, one can hardly see the traces of old district For instance, the former hospital of St George, which was built in Neogothic style, houses the Marine Сollege now. The hospital of St George, founded in 1329, was the property of Altstadt. It was rather far beyond the town limits as it housed lepers. At the end of the XIX century the old hospital building was replaced by a new one which remains to this day.
There was a school at the St George hospital where Immanuel Kant studied from 1730 till 1732. The building that replaced it housed the Empire Railway Head Office. It is the most striking building on Leninsky Avenue. One can easily recognize it by two allegorical figures on the cornice symbolizing Movement and Time. 
Brandenburg Gate
To the south-west of Forstedtishe Langgasse (part of the present Leninsky Avenue) stretches a street known as Alter Garten (or Old Garden). It is a part of today's Bagration Street. At the end of the street
the famous Brandenburg Gate of Kenigsberg is situated, the only gate in the modem city opened for traffic.
On the Gate one can see two portrait medallions of General-Field-Marshal fon Bojen and General of Engineers fon Aster. General fon Aster participated in the programme of old military fortifications extensive modernization in 40-ies of the XIX century.
General fon Bojen fought against Napoleon and made a brilliant military career. Twice he was appointed to the post of the War Minister. The relieves of both generals were created by sculptor W. Sturmer whose masterpieces adorned all the gates of Kenigsberg.
The Fortress of Kenigsberg
The Fortress of Kenigsberg had been built and modernized for hundreds of years. One of the first town defences was the Lithuanian Rampart, originally it was earthen and built in the XIV century to defend the town from the Lithuanian cavalry. At the beginning of the XVII century the old town walls and towers were surrounded by the first line of ramparts with bastions and fortress gates. In 1657 the citadel 'Friedrichsburg' was erected (the gate with three towers as the surviving sections of it are still visible in Portovaya Street). At the beginning of the XIX century the second line of ramparts was erected in Kenigsberg. These are towers: Wrangel, Don, casemate gates: Brandenburg, Friedland, Rossgarten and others built in Neogothic style, which was in fashion that time, and its variety — Tudor style. After the French-Prussian war (1870-1871) Kenigsberg was surrounded by fifteen big forts, the biggest of them are Fort № 3 'King Friedrich ПГ and Fort № 5 'King Friedrich Wilhelm III1. They met all the requirements of fortress architecture of that time. By the end of the World War I Kenigsberg had become the first-rank fortress.
Ponart
Ponart (today's Baltic District) was one of the most ancient German settlements surrounded Kenigsberg, it was founded approximately in 1385 on the site of a Prussian village. The name 'Ponart' itself derives from the old Prussian words' combination 'pa nartas' — 'under the angle1. For a long time Ponart belonged to Knaiphoff, but in 1609 by the order of Kurfurst Johan Zigismund it was joined to Lebenicht. In the XIX century Ponart was the most densely populated suburb of Kenigsberg. In 1905 it became part of the city. The rapid development of Ponart and its significance can be explained by the appearance in this district of two famous breweries 'Stenbush' and 'Ponart', a number of munition factories, the 'Shihau' shipyard as well as by the developing and expanding of the railway junction. Ponart beer enjoyed great popularity all over the world. Now the greater part of the local beer production comes from these breweries.
The main'street of Ponart was Brandenburg-strasse (Kievskaya Street now). Many of its historic buildings still remain to this day, for example, the school named after Pestalotsi, the cinema 'Liechtbiltbune' (cinema 'Rodina' now). The former restaurant 'Zudpark' stands nearby, in postwar time it houses the Palace of Culture of the Plant 'Yantar'. On the eve of the war there were three churches in Ponart. One of these churches, an evangelical church built in 1896, has survived to date. Now it's the Orthodox Church of the Birth of the Holy Virgin.
Lebenicht
To the east of the Castle (today's Moscow District) the second ancient settlement of Lebenicht was located. The town privilege was granted to it on May, 20, 1300. The town was reduced to ashes with no trace of its church prominently situated on the hill approximately in the area of the present supermarket 'Moskovsky'. Opposite the church, roughly on the site of the memorial to the seamen, there was a magnificent high school building. Right across the river, near the wooden bridge, stands a red brick building of the former Municipal Orphanage for Jewish Children designed by the architect Berend Steglitz in 1904-1905. It is now converted to a dwelling house. Next to it there was a synagogue built in 1894-1896 with the 46-metre cupola. It was destroyed by the Nazis on the night of November, 9, 1938 (the so-called 'Crystal Night').
Sackheim Gate
At the end of the former Sackheim there is the oldest of 8 town gates — Sackheim Gate. It was through it that on January 8, 1813 General York fon Wartenburg with fifty Black Hussars proceeded secretly to Kenigsberg. On February, 5 he appealed to the representatives of Eastern Prussian estates to form the people's volunteer corps and start an armed revolt against Napoleon. Earlier, on December, 30, 1812 at Taurognen General York made a historic agreement on mutual actions against the French troops with General fon Dibitch who served in the Russian army. As a result the Russians and the Germans united in their struggle and won a brilliant victory. General Bulov contributed greatly to the victory. He took part in many battles including those of Paris and Leipsig, and initiated the forming of the people's volunteer corps. General York and Bulov were immortalized by sculptor W. Sturmer in portrait medallions which adorned Sackheim Gate at that time. The neighbouring streets were named in their honor.
King's Gate. Airport
On the right of Sackheim Gate an old unattractive building can be seen. This is one of the oldest buildings in the city, a unique monument of architecture. It housed the King's Orphanage founded by the first Prussian king in 1701 and built to a design by the talented architect fon Unfridt However the present-day building hardly resembles the original — the lost gem of Sackheim.
Litauer Wall-strasse (or Lithuanian Rampart Street) connects two gates — Sackheim and King's. Further to the left stretches York-strasse (now 1812 Year Street) — a very interesting street from the historic point of view. Some of its buildings still remain to this day: the former Fire Station 'Ost', a complex of buildings of the former Military Hospital. It houses the City Hospital for Infectious Diseases now. Nearby, in S. Tulenin Street, one of the oldest schools of Kenigsberg — the Queen Luisa School — still remains.
Three sculptures in the bay of the portal adorned King's Gate. These are figures of three men whose fates were inseparably connected with Kenigsberg. The central figure is the first Prussian King Friedrich I; on his right— Duke Albrecht; on his left — Bohemian King Ottokar II. All the sculptures were executed (beheaded) in spring 1945.
King's Gate stands at the end of Kenig-strasse (Frunze Street now). It extended for a kilometer, began from Rossgarten Market and led to the Gate. It was one of the busiest streets of the city with many beautiful'buildings most of which were reduced to ruins. Baroque, Renaissance, Modern styles were all there in friendly rivalry.
To the north-east of King's Gate stretches a street known as Kenigs-allee (or King's Avenue), in Nazi's time it was renamed after Herman Hering (now it's called Gagarin Street).
More further in the eastern direction there was the Devau estate where a large drill ground for the troops of Kenigsberg garrison was built in 1798. On that ground Napoleon inspected his troops in 1808. In 1919 the first German civil airport was built there. Nowadays it's used mainly by sportsmen-parachutists. There is a new airport near the settlement of Khrabrovo (former Povunden).
Rossgarten Gate. 'Grolman' bastion. 'Kronprintz* barracks
To the north of King's Gate Lithuanian Rampart Street leads to Rossgarten Gate of Kenigsberg. The old military fortifications which were part of the old town defensive system are still visible alongside the street. This rampart with bastions and gates was built on the initiative of King Friedrich Wilhelra IV to a design by Johan Straus, Professor of Mathematics of Kenigsberg University, during the time of so-called Swedish wars in 1626-1627. In 40-50-ies of the XIX century it underwent extensive modernization. The extensive modernization programme was developed by General fon Grolman and General fon Aster. Further along the street there is a stout bastion named after General Grolman.
Just across the 'Grolman1 bastion stand impressive in their size and design defensive barracks 'Kronprintz', the foundation of which was solemnly laid in 1843. They housed Grenadier Regiment № 1. After the World War I they were used by police regiments.
In 1910 the defensive line of Kenigsberg was turned into its green belt which proved a beautiful contrast of fauna and flora to the surrounding urban environment. That wonderful transformation was made by the talented landscape architect Earnest Shneider.
Lithuanian Rampart Street leads to well-preserved Rossgarten Gate adorned by the portrait medallions of General-Field-Marshal Neidhardt fon Gnesenau and General Gerhard fon Sharnhorst. Both generals took part in the napoleons wars and since 1808 had been in the Army Reorganization Committee. General Sharnhorst, a chief of the staff of the Blucher's Army, took part in the Battle of Preisish-Ailau. He died of wounds in 1813. General Gnesenau,' a close friend and a'fellow-fighter of Sharnhorst, became after his death a chief of Silezian Army's staff. At the Battle of Waterloo he captured the Napoleon's coach which was later presented to him by the king. He died of cholera in Poznan in 1831.
Don's Tower. Amber Museum
Next to Rossgarten Gate stands Don's Tower. This stout defensive construction was built in the 50-ios of the XIX century and named after General Friedrich Karl zu Don. In 1812 Duke zu Don served in Russian Army and headed the Hussar regiment of the Russian-German legion.
Nowadays the tower serves as the Amber Museum. Before the war the museum was housed at the Albertina's Geological Institute in Lange Reihe (Barnaulskaya Street now). It was founded by Professor Klebs in 1899 and was considered to be the only of its kind in the world. On the eve of the war there were many amber processing shops in Kenigsberg. Amber has been quarried at Yantarny (former Palmnicken).
The Amber Room was made by gifted and skillful Danish and German craftsmen by order of King Friedrich 1. In 1717 Friedrich Wilhelm I presented it to Peter I. In the reign of Czarina Elizabeth the Amber Room was mounted by the great Rastrelli and Martelli in Tsarskoye Selo. During the World War II it was kept in the King's Castle. In 1941 the Room was installed in Hall № 27 under the direction of Alfred Rode, chief of the Amber Museum. In winter 1945 it was seen dismantled in the Castle vaults for the last time and then it disappeared without any trace. A. Rode supervised its dismantling, packing .and sheltering. After the fall of Kenigsberg he disappeared under unknown circumstances..
Cranzer-allee. Maraunenhof District. Upper Pond
To the north of Rossgarten Gate stretches Cranzer-allee (Nevsky Street now) which leads to the old suburbs of Kenigsberg — Rotenstein (Kutuzovo now) and Quednau (Severnaya Gora now). After the war many buildings appeared there, a new University complex among them. It was constructed on the site of the former hippodrome. At the junction with Kanonenweg (Artillerijskaya Street now) lies the area of military barracks. Further along the street an old building of Crematorium has remained to this day. Itwas built in 1916 under the direction of the construction adviser Glage. Now it houses the Hospital for Mental Diseases.
One of the oldest suburbs of Kenigsberg, Quednau, became part of the city only in 1939. In ancient times on its highest wooded hill, Quednau mount, there was a holy ground where the Prussians made sacrifices to their gods. In the time of the German Order, a church was built there in honour of St Apostle Yakob, a patron of sailors. It was known as a place of pilgrimage for seamen and fishermen. There is nothing left of the church though it survived the World War II, and since 1255 it had been renovated several times after bad damages.
Herzog Albrecht-allee (Telman Street now) leads to the city centre. It lies in the former district called Maraunenhof that remains many characteristic features of Kenigsberg and crosses the square known as Kenig Ottokar-platz. There was a church there built in Neoromanesque stile in memory of Duke Albrecht to a design by the architects Mattar and Sheler in 1912. The remaining part of it can still be seen. But itwas extensively rebuilt and hardly resembles the original (it houses the 'Leningrad' cinema now).
Aschmann-allee (Parkovaya Avenue now) stretches from Kenig Ottokar-platz to the former park named after the merchant Max Aschmann. In 1903 he bequeathed 100,000 marks to the city for laying out recreation parks. It was one of the largest parks in the city. Its splendid forest paths, flower-beds, the 'Forest Castle', man-made hills and ponds were the most perfect example of landscape architecture. The park was neglected after the war.
Further along Herzog Albrecht-allee stands a building of Polytechnic School erected in Constructivism style (the former Trade College). Nearby lies the Upper Pond founded by knights of the Order in 1270. It was a part of the defensive system and at the same time abundant in fish — carp, perch, roach, pike and even eel. There were some bath houses by the pond such as 'Hansa1, 'Prussia' and others. The Upper Pond has changed greatly since then. But the charming sculptures of sea animals by Herman Tille are still visible. They are not far from the Wrangel Tower.
Wrangel Tower. Art Gallery. German Eastern Fair.  Palestra Albertina
Wrangel Tower was erected in 1853 and named after General-Field-Marshal Duke Wrangel. From 1839 till 1842 Wrangel was a corps commander in Kenigsberg, in 1845 he was promoted to the post of the 3-rd Cuirassier regiment commander. On the eve of the World War II the Tower housed the youth hotel.
In Wall-ring Street (Professor Baranov Street now) near Wrangel Tower you can see a genuine monument of Kenigsberg architecture — the former Art Gallery designed by the architect Friedrich Lars andopenedinl913.lt serves as a warehouse now. Nearby an impressive building of dark red clinker stands roofless. Its spacious premises are used for a wide range of shops. Itwas built in 1925 to a design by the architect Hans Hopp and called the House of Technique. It was the largest hall of Kenigsberg and served as an exhibition hall of the German Eastern Fair. But it was used not only for exhibitions, but also for sport competitions and mass political events which entertained hundreds of people. The aim of the German Eastern Fair was to promote trade-economic cooperation with eastern countries. The first, fair was held in the area of the Zoo in September 1920, afterwards prior to autumn 1941 the fairs took place on the site of the present-day public garden. The main entrance to the Fair was in Hanza-ring (Victory Square now) on the site of the Statue of V. I. Lenin.
Not far from the House of Technique in Wall-ring Street stands a magnificent building of the former technical high school named after Gindenburg and opened in 1917. Now it's one of the Technical Institute's buildings. Close to it there is a building of the former Baptist community, Technical Institute's laboratories now.
From the Upper Pond to the Victory Square stretches a street known as Wrangel-strasse (Chemyakhovsky Street now). On its left side, just opposite the Central Market, there is an old building of red clinker which once housed the Fire Station 'Nord'. Now it's the Department of Motor Transport Inspection. Further along the street stands a conspicuous building of the former Palestra Albertina — Indoor Multi-Sport House of the Kenigsberg University with all the necessary facilities: a gym, a swimming pool and fencing halls. Now it's the Baltic Naval Sport Club.
Palestra Albertina was located in the former Tragheim District which was known as the University district of Kenigsberg with many students, cafeterias and small restaurants. Nearby there were some houses where professors of the University lived. Apart from the University 'New Albertina' there was Physics Institute of the University. Its building still remains, it houses Kaliningradrybprom Head Office now. The University complex consisted of 28 buildings, approximately half of them have remained to this day. These are mainly buildings of the Medical Faculty which are still used as medical institutions, for instance, in Vagner and Barnaulskaya Street.
Hansa-platz. Stadthouse. Northern Railway Station 

In 1923 in the area of Hansa-platz, opposite the main entrance to the Eastern Fair, a new building was erected to a design by the architect Hans Hopp. Initially built as a Trade House it was converted by the magistracy for use as Stadthouse (Town Hall), the seat of the city authorities in 1927. Nowadays it serves as a municipal building as well.
.
In the pre-war period it housed the residence of Burgomaster of Kenigsberg Hans Lomayer who did a lot for the city. In 1933 he was dismissed from his office by the Nazis. The last Burgomaster of Kenigsberg, Helmut Will, was appointed to his post due to his extraordinary abilities as a financier. He had ne power in the Nazi Party. Nevertheless after the fall of Kenigsberg he was sentenced to ten years imprisonment and sent to the USSR together with dther prisoners of war.
Behind the Town Hall, between Wall-ring and Shteindammer Wall (now Galitsky Street), there was Trommel-platz (Drum Square) which has changed completely since the war.
Opposite the Town Hall a magnificent building of the Northern Railway Station can be seen. Built in 1930 by the architect Martin Shtalman it was intended for trains leaving for Labiau (now Polessk) and Tilsit (now Sovetsk) as well as for resorts in Zemland. In its western part there was a hotel and a restaurant. Its eastern part occupied Eastern German Railway Society. In the central part of it there were booking offices and shops. Nowadays it's being' reconstructed by a German company which has taken it on lease for 25 years.
From the place of train departure in the area of the Northern Railway Station small new building a viaduct over the railroad can bee seen. It's a part of the former Schindekopp-strasse (today's General Ozerov Street). On the western side of the square stands a building of the former District Court built in 1913. Now it's the Technical Institute. Close to it in the former Hansa-ring you can see a bronze sculpture of two fighting bisons made by the famous sculptor August Gaul in 1912. In Kenigsberg it was known as 'a public prosecutor against a barrister' symbolizing an eternal opposition between accusation and defence as the key attribute of justice which was administered in the building nearby.
At the junction of Streseman-strasse (now Sovietsky Avenue) with Hendel-strasse (now Gendel Street) there is a splendid building of the former Head Police Station, a perfect example of Dutch Renaissance style erected to a design by the architect F. Haitmann in 1914.
Hufen District (Drama Theatre. 'Baltica' Stadium. Zoo)
The Hufen District is different from many other areas of Kaliningrad which were reduced to ruins during the war. It is still, as it always was, one of the most beautiful districts of the city. Because of the wealth of interesting buildings it remains a very strong character of its own. On the right of the Hansa-ring Street (part of Mir Avenue now) at the junction of Brams-strasse (Brams Street now) with Gluck-strasse (Grekov Street now) stands a splendid building which amazes the viewers by its majestic and harmonious Neogothic style. It was built in 1918 and housed the Post Head Office. It's the Headquarters of the Baltic Navy now. Just over the road one can see a long building with a flat roof which housed 'The Radio of Eastern Prussia', a newspaper editorial office and the City Archives. Nowadays its
premises are used by a number of institutions, the Atlantic Department of the Oceanology Institute and the Regional Public Library are among them.
At the junction of Hansa-ring with Hufen-allee (part of Mir Avenue from the Drama Theatre to the Kalinin Park) there was a majestic and elegant building of the former Kenigsberg Drama Theatre, the District Drama Theatre now. On the eve of World War II it was one of the most modern theatres in Germany. During the period from 1925 to 1933 it was under the direction of Fritz Yesner and the theatre was at its most prosperity. On its portal there was a Shiller's line: 'Only fantasy eternally abides with youth'. At the end of the war the theatre was severely damaged and its restorers made many alterations particularly to its front reproducing some forms of the facade of the Bolshoi Theatre in Moscow. The reconstructed building assumed a majestic appearance. Near the theatre there is a bronze statue of Shiller. It was unveiled in front of the Opera Theatre in Paraden-platz in 1910. In 1936 it was moved to the Drama Theatre. This outstanding sculptured work of Stanislav Kauer, Professor of the Academy of Arts, was not like most of the Kenigsberg monuments destroyed during the war. A Russian soldier wrote on its pedestal: 'Don't shoot! This is poet Shiller'.
In this district there are a lot of recreation places buried in lush greenery which offer a relaxing escape from the bustle of city life. One of them is a sport complex originally named after the famous banker Walter Simon who sponsored the construction of the first sports grounds in 1892. In 1938 it was renamed Erich Koch-platz and the statue of General York in front of it was removed.
The Kenigsberg residents were fond of their Zoo opened in 1896. Herman Klaas, its director for many years, loved animals passionately. An idyllic sculpture in his honour with a dedication to him made by sculptor Walter Rosenberg still remains on the site of the Zoo. It depicts a boy playing with two bear-cubs and a small hippopotamus. On the eve of the war there were about 2,000 animals in the Zoo. Almost all of them perished during the assault of Kenigsberg. But a lot of old open-air cages and lanes still remain to this day. The last director of the Zoo in 1939-1945 was Doctor Hans Georg Tinemann. His father, the famous scientist Iohannes Tinemann, initiated the opening of the ornithological station on the Kurshsky Spit in 1901.
Opposite the Zoo stands an imposing building of the former Insurance Company 'Nordstem' (The Northern Star') which was renovated and converted to the 'Moscow' hotel. It was built by the well-known architect Zigfrid Zassnik who designed the first entrance to the Zoo. On the opposite side, next to the Zoo, a conspicuous building of the former high school stands back a bit from the road behind splendid trees. It was built under the direction of the construction adviser Kraatz in 1915.
'Scala' was the most beautiful cinema in the district ('Zarya' cinema now). Nearby in the former Gindenburg-strasse (Cosmonaut Leonov Street now) is an elegant building of the former Lyceum. In the post-war years it housed secondary school. Now it's the Industrial Training Centre. Above the entrance a few sculptured portraits by sculptor Kauer still remain to this day. One of the Russian cosmonauts — Yury Romanenko finished school № 18. There is ah obelisk in honour of our townsmen-cosmonauts — Romanenko, Leonov, Patsaev nearby made by sculptor B, Edunov.
